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STATE OF TENNESSEE
TREASURY DEPARTMENT
ALTERNATIVE PROCUREMENT SOLICITATION # 30901-31917 
AMENDMENT # 1
FOR MARKETING AND ADVERTISING SERVICES FOR TNStars® 529 COLLEGE SAVINGS PLAN


DATE:  May 19, 2016

APS # 30901-31917 IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

1. This APS Schedule of Events updates and confirms scheduled APS dates.  Any event, time, or date containing revised or new text is highlighted.

	
	
	

	EVENT

	TIME 
(central time zone)
	DATE
(all dates are State business days)

	1. State releases APS
	
	May 2, 2016

	2. Disability Accommodation Request Deadline
	2:00 pm
	 May 5, 2016

	3. Pre-Response Teleconference
	10:00am
	May 6, 2016

	4. Notice of Intent to Respond Deadline
	2:00 pm
	May 9, 2016

	5. Deadline to Submit Written Questions and Comments
	2:00 pm
	May 12, 2016

	6. State’s Response to Written Questions & Comments
	
	May 19, 2016

	7. Deadline to Submit Response to APS
	2:00 pm
	May 26, 2016

	8. State’s Completion of APS Evaluations; selection of up to 5 finalists
	
	June 13, 2016

	9. State Notifies and Schedules Finalists Interviews  
	
	              June 15, 2016

	10. Finalists Interviews (Second day of interviews if more than three (3) finalists selected.
	
	June 28, 2016 & June 29, 2016 

	11. Sealed Cost Proposals Submitted 
	3:00 p.m.
	June 29, 2016

	12. State’s Completion of Interview Evaluations 
	
	July 11, 2016

	13. Opening of Cost Proposals
	
	July 12, 2016

	14. Negotiations
	
	July 14, 2016 to July 21, 2016

	15. Evaluation Notice Released and APS Files Opened for Public Inspection
	
	July 26, 2016

	16. Deadline to file  an objection with  Treasurer and end of open file period
	3:00 pm
	August 2, 2016

	17. Contractor Signature Deadline
	
	August 5, 2016






2. State responses to questions and comments in the table below amend and clarify this RFP.

Any restatement of APS text in the Question/Comment column shall NOT be construed as a change in the actual wording of the APS document.

	QUESTION / COMMENT
	STATE RESPONSE

	1 
	Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like, from India or Canada)
	Neither the APS nor the Pro Forma contract prohibits companies outside of the U.S. from submitting proposals to this APS.
 

	2 
	Whether we need to come over there for meetings?
	It is the expectation of the State that the Contractor will be available for in-person meetings with the State, upon request by the State.  The State’s Pro Forma Contract will be amended (as indicated below) to provide that in-person meetings between the State and the Contractor may be required at the request of the State.  

	3 
	Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada)
	Neither the APS nor the Pro Forma Contract prohibits the tasks contained in the Contract from being performed outside of the United States.  



	4 
	Can we submit the proposals via email?????
	The submission of proposals is contained in Section IX. [RESPONSE DELIVERY AND FORMAT] of the APS, which does not permit email submissions. 

	5 
	Will the new agency be responsible for digital and social media advertising purchase, placement and management?
	Presently, digital and social media advertisement is handled internally by the Treasury Communications team. These responsibilities may be transferred to the Contractor if it is in the best interest of TNStars® and best aligns with the marketing strategy and goals. If internal control of digital and social media advertisement is maintained, the Contractor may still direct creatives and placement relative to planned marketing campaigns. 

	6 
	Is television advertising a desired media for TNStars?
	Television is among the desired media options; however, a respondent should design a marketing strategy utilizing media recommendations believed to be most appropriate to achieve the desired results. 

	7 
	Will new agency be responsible for public relations?
	Public relations are handled internally by the Treasury Department’s Director of Communications. There may be marketing strategies and initiatives surrounding public relations efforts for which the contractor could be responsible. 

	8 
	Does TNStars have plans to create a new/revamped web site?  If so, will the new agency be responsible for the design and implementation of the site?
	Yes. We would like to revamp the TNStars® website. The existing website was created by the original marketing contractor, but is currently maintained internally by Treasury staff.  Once a respondent is awarded the contract, the State will evaluate whether the contractor will be responsible for the design of the website and determine if it is best to retain maintenance of the website internally or have shared responsibility with the contractor.

	9 
	Item B19.  What constitutes “proof” of current subscription with Neilsen /Arbitron rating services?

(FYI, Arbitron no longer exists. It was bought by Neilsen and is now called Neilsen Audio)

	The State has requested a current subscription to the Nielsen rating services as a baseline to insure that the awarded contractor has the tools necessary to negotiate broadcast schedules without bias, analyze the effectiveness of a campaign, and provide the State with proof of performance for all TV and radio campaigns. Respondents should provide any documentation they feel will appropriately substantiate their ability to meet these requests. 


	10 
	Item A5.  Will a full Dunn & Bradstreet current report satisfy the requirement for a full credit bureau report?
	Yes.  

	11 
	Does the State have current or prior research available to review?
	Yes. The State retains prospective and current customer research that was completed by the original marketing contractor in 2012 and 2013, respectively. 

	12 
	How did the State determine that $5,000 is the average gap between financial aid and education costs?
	Assuming that this question is based on the $5,000 gap that is identified in the online tutorial on tnstars.com, $5,000 was used solely for illustrative purposes to explain how saving for college through a TNStars® account could cover the gap, if any, between financial aid and the cost of higher education.

	13 
	Does the State have results / quantitative performance metrics from the initial roll-out campaign (i.e. audience reach, audience engagement, call-to-action response, website Google Analytics, social media metrics, etc.)?
	Yes. The State retains quarterly reports prepared by the original marketing contractor that contain some of the metrics identified.

	14 
	Does the State have specific goals in mind for the new campaign such as X percent increase in number of participants; X percent increase in contributions of current investors?
	At the end of April 2016, the program held $63.6 million in assets and 9,631 funded accounts. The program has experienced monthly growth in assets and new accounts averaging $1.45 million and 218, respectively, since inception. Increased assets and participation are important factors to be considered in the development of an overall marketing strategy. Specific goals will be developed in conjunction with the short-term and long-term marketing strategies and will be discussed with the respondent awarded the contract.

	15 
	What is the State’s exact goal for number of consumers participating in the TNStars® College Savings 529 Plan, by end of years 2017, 2018 and 2019? What is the current or more recent number of participants?
	Please refer to the State’s response to question 14.

	16 
	How many consumers comprise the State’s current database of TNStars® College Savings 529 Plan 1) current and past participants, and 2) prospects?  How has the State procured its database of these or other direct-marketing leads?
	TNStars® has 9,631 current participants derived from the number of funded accounts for unique beneficiaries. In addition to current customers the program regularly obtains contact information for prospective customers through promotional efforts, giveaways, and events.  Historically, TNStars® has relied on the marketing contractor to procure prospective lists based on audiences targeted for specific marketing campaigns.  

	17 
	Based on continuous references to paid advertising in the RFP, it seems there may be a somewhat prescriptive assumption that advertising (paid-for time/space in traditional and/or digital media) should drive the core work of this RFP.  Is the State willing to consider other, possibly more cost-effective and strategic means of educating and engaging targeted consumer publics than through paid media advertising?
	Yes. The State is open to alternative methods and will rely on the expertise of the Contractor to recommend cost-effective and strategic means of educating and engaging targeted consumers.

	18 
	Has the Sate ever engaged an inbound marketing strategy (defined by Hubspot as “creating quality content that pulls people toward your company and product, where they naturally want to be,”) as opposed to only outbound methods (which Hubspot defines as “buying ads, buying email lists, and praying for leads.”)
	The State has not previously engaged an inbound marketing strategy, but will rely upon the expertise of the awarded Contractor to recommend innovative techniques to assist TNStars® with meeting its goals.

	19 
	Item C.9. states, “Assuming an annual budget of $500,000, demonstrate what types of creative products, ideas and initiatives your team would utilize. Please include a schedule of proposed deliverables and the proportion of the budget allocated to each.”  Respectfully, this requirement basically calls for partial creation of an actual plan and provision of intellectual property, for which vendor prospects are not being compensated via the RFP.  In addition, this requirement calls for tactical-development work without benefit or aid of appropriate client input or market-research generation / compilation / review.  Understanding that vendors are nonetheless required to respond to Item C.9, is the State willing to defer formulation of a tactical action plan and granular budget until an appropriate discovery process and research effort has been executed by the selected team in order to calibrate the best messages with current consumer awareness levels, messaging needs, and known utilization of specific types of media for purposes of savings-information guidance, as confirmed through market data?
	No. The purpose of C.9. is to provide a fair and effective way to evaluate respondents given an equal benchmark for consideration. Respondents are encouraged to answer the question to the best of their abilities. 

	20 
	In Item C.10., the RFP calls for advance formulation of “the messaging that your firm would provide to each unique audience and the medium in which the messaging would be provided,” and “explain the proportion of the overall budget that will be directed to each audience.” Respectfully, this requirement basically calls for partial creation of an actual plan and provision of intellectual property, for which vendor prospects are not being compensated via the RFP.  In addition, this requirement calls for message-development work without benefit or aid of appropriate client input or market-research generation / compilation / review to inform an overarching strategy that would then inform tactical execution of messaging and deliverables.  Understanding that vendors are nonetheless required to respond to Item C.10, is the State willing to defer formulation of actual messaging until an appropriate discovery process and research effort has been executed by the selected vendor team in order to calibrate the best messages with current consumer awareness levels, messaging needs, and known utilization of specific types of media for purposes of savings-information guidance, as confirmed through market data?
	No. Respondents are encouraged to answer the question to the best of their abilities.

	21 
	Is there an incumbent agency for this work? If so, who?
	The State’s previous contract for marketing of the TNStars® program was held by Walker and Associates. The contract ended on May 7, 2016. 

	22 
	How long has this program been in existence?
	The TNStars® College Savings 529 Program has been in existence since September of 2012. Marketing efforts were focused in Middle Tennessee prior to January 2013 at which time the State engaged in a statewide marketing campaign.

	23 
	Is there a primary target audience for the TNStars program?
	The target audiences are current and prospective college savers.  The State desires to work with the Contractor to identify prospective customers using research and analytics performed within the scope of the contract.

	24 
	What are the annual enrollment goals for the TNStars program?
	Please refer to the State’s response to question 14.

	25 
	Historically, have the annual enrollment goals been met? Is there a data on the historical enrollment trend that we may view?
	The plan recently surpassed the anticipated FY 2013 asset goal of $50 million. At the end of April 2016, the plan held $63.6 million in assets and 9,631 funded accounts. Data regarding historical enrollment trends may be provided to the awarded respondent.

	26 
	How will success be quantified from this advertising/marketing campaign?
	The specific goals to increase participants and contributions will be discussed with the Contractor to help develop the marketing strategy for TNStars®. The Contractor will be expected to develop a monitoring system and performance measures to assess the effectiveness of the various marketing methods, efforts and campaigns utilized as a result of the strategy.  Success will be quantified based on whether those particular marketing methods, efforts and campaigns meet the performance measures and assist the program with meeting its goals.




3. Add the following as APS section A.6 in the Pro Forma Contract:

Section A.6. [Monitoring and Reporting] in the Pro Forma Contract is amended by adding the following sentence to the section:

At the State’s request, the Contractor may be required to attend in-person meetings with the State relative to the Contractor’s progress and performance pursuant to the Contract provisions.  


4. APS Clarification.

The State would like to provide clarification relative to the submission of cost proposals relative to this APS.  Section IX in the APS provides that “[each response to this APS must consist of a Technical Proposal (Attachments A, B and C) and a Cost Proposal (Attachment E).”  Section XXVII I the APS provides that “[t]he APS Coordinator shall notify each Respondent Finalist that (i) it is to submit a Cost Proposal by the date shown, and (ii) that it shall schedule an Interview.”  Section XXVII in the APS further provides “[t]he APS Coordinator will open for evaluation the Cost Proposal (Attachment E) of each Respondent Finalist identified and will calculate and record each Cost Proposal score after Interviews are conducted.”  A Respondent may submit a cost proposal along with its technical proposal, or a Respondent may submit a cost proposal in the event it is selected as a Respondent Finalist.  Should the Respondent submit a cost proposal with its technical proposal, the cost proposal will only be opened and considered by the State in the event the Respondent is selected as a Respondent Finalist.  The sealed cost proposal would need to be submitted by the deadline in the schedule of events which is item #11 Sealed Cost Proposals Submitted 3:00 p.m. Central Time on June 29, 2016.
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